
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
B. ROLL CALL 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement) 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. March 10, 2025 Regular Minutes 
 

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1. Christopher Lhotak  is nominated for re-appointment to the Senior Commission by Councilmember John 

Tieman. 
 

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.   
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 

 
The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email to:  
councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to 
the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. Please note, when submitting 
your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not 
provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

K. CONSENT AGENDA (1 voice vote required) 
1. Westgate Avenue Improvements Project-  New Construction Contract amount 

 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT –  (voice vote on each item as needed) 

1. City Manager Updates 
• Recognition Streets and Sanitation 

2. Second (2nd) Quarter Financial Report - December 31, 2024 
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  (2nd and 3rd readings – roll call vote required) 
None 

 
N. NEW BUSINESS 

Resolutions   (voice vote required)  
1. Res – 2025-03 Flood Buyout Policy for FEMA's Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) grant. 
2. Res – 2025-04 Flood Buyout Policy for FEMA's Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) grant. 

 
Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 
none 

  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, March 24, 2025 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION (roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes of 
action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
 
Posted March 21, 2025. 
 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


March 10, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes    Page 1 of 5 

 

AGENDA 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, March 10, 2025,
Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:

Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember John Tieman 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Lisa Brenner 

` Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John Mulligan, Jr.; Director of 
Finance, Keith Cole, and Director of Planning & Development, John Wagner  

Mayor Crow thanked Ms. Dean for filling in for Ms. Reese, who is attending a City Clerk Conference 
this week.   

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Hearing no requests to amend, Councilmember Tieman moved to approve the Agenda as
presented, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously.

D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement)
None

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. February 24, 2025, Study Session Minutes – Architectural Review Board; was moved for

approval by Councilmember McMahon, it was seconded by Councilmember Fuller, and the
motion carried unanimously.

2. February 24, 2025, Regular Minutes was moved for approval by Councilmember McMahon, it
was seconded by Councilmember Tieman, and the motion carried unanimously.

F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
None

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
None

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed)
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room.

Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  Comments may
be sent via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. –
Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to the City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments
will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, March 10, 2025 
6:30 p.m. 

E - 1 - 1

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

March 10, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes                          Page 2 of 5 
 

Please note that when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also 
note whether your comment is on an agenda or a non-agenda item.  If a name and address are not provided, 
the comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
Citizen Comments 
Tom Sullivan, 751 Syracuse, U City, MO 
Mr. Sullivan stated he attended the State of the City Address given by the Mayor and City Manager 
last week, which was nice; not particularly believable, but nice.  U City has dropped to a third-tier 
city, and I suppose, the best way to deal with that is to just pretend that you are still a top-tier city.  
The School District does something similar, and Councilmember Tieman, who has less than a year 
on the Council, has become a true believer; he plans to write an essay about everything that has 
been accomplished.  But first, I would suggest that Councilmember Tieman take a walk around the 
City. 

•  The fountain at Lewis Park is crumbling into the pond and the lip around the pond is 
decaying;   

•  The Rain Man Sculpture is in need of maintenance; 
•  Many of the curbs are still missing on streets in the North Loop even after they've been 

paved;   
•  The playground in Ackert Park used to be packed with families in the evenings, but after it 

was removed during the City's $800,000 renovation, there are fewer people in the park;  
•  Costco was supposed to generate more redevelopment along the Olive Corridor but there 

are even more vacancies;  7-Eleven, the Car Wash, Frank & Helen's, Family Dollar, 
Advanced Auto Parts, and even the notorious Elmo's Love Lounge are now closed, and 

•  The Loop is also in decline with approximately 30 vacancies, so it seems like its unique 
character is being developed out of existence.  

 
Mr. Sullivan stated that he was especially interested in hearing about the 3rd Ward Revitalization.  
Mr. Rose has said that when you improve the 3rd Ward you improve the City.  True, but when is it 
going to be improved?  It's been two and a half years since Costco opened, but where are the 
results from this funding that was supposed to provide revitalization?  The total number of 
improvements completed is zero.  The total number of improvements planned is zero.  The number 
of surveys issued by the 3rd Ward Revitalization Task Force is numerous.  The number of Task 
Force meetings is unending.  Even the proposals submitted by the consultant; which some 
members of the Task Force believe are unrealistic, have not been implemented.  Time and time 
again, residents have come to these meetings looking for information about these proposed 
improvements and are told that nothing can be done at this time.  Thank you. 
 
Jerrold Tiers, 7345 Chamberlain Avenue, U City, MO 
Mr. Tiers stated the Housing Toolkit Section of the 3rd Ward Housing and Revitalization Task 
Force Report suggests several forgivable loan programs, which is a very good idea.  But, many of 
them lack a means test, which he sees as a fatal flaw that will make these loans totally ineffective.  
They are also open to everyone and not directed at the people with code violations or other urgent 
problems who truly need these loans.  As a result, he would absolutely guarantee that people 
having far less need for assistance will apply, and those who really need this program will be shut 
out by the ones who got there first.  Consequently, the program will fail to do what it was intended 
to do.   
 He stated for this program to have the kind of results that are needed, it will have to consist 
of a means test to make certain that initially, the funds are applied to the most urgently needed 
repairs.  Therefore, he would suggest that all applicants be required to have a no-fault housing 
inspection to assess their needs.  It should be used only as a guide to identify urgent problems and 
direct the repair process; it should not be used against the owner whether or not they are awarded 
the loan.  It should also not prevent other types of work from being done after the owner has 
addressed all of their urgent issues.  Once applications having urgent needs are handled, then the 
process can be opened up to other applicants who pass the means test.   

E - 1 - 2



 

March 10, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes                          Page 3 of 5 
 

At that point, if any money is left, then the means test threshold can be raised until either the funds 
have been expended, or all applicants have been served.   
 Mr. Tiers stated using the combination of a means test and a no-fault inspection to identify 
urgently needed repairs as preliminary qualifications would improve the 3rd Ward's housing stock 
and have a direct benefit to its residents.  After all, housing being up to code is the basic goal and 
therefore, must be a minimal requirement.   
 There is one shot at this project and U City cannot afford to miss this chance to make a 
significant difference.  It has been a long time coming, so it needs to be done right.  Thank you.   
 
Diane Jackson, 6836 Crest Avenue, U City, MO 
Ms. Jackson stated she is having problems with three trees on her street that are a threat to the 
homes in that area.   
 One is an American Sweet Gum Tree, which is acceptable according to the City's website, 
but it is supposed to be planted in an area that has 3 times the diameter of the tree.  In this case, 
it's not.  Not only are the balls and sap a nuisance in your yards and the street, but they're 
dangerous and have put several dents in her car.  Another tree is uprooting the sidewalk and limbs 
from the third tree keep falling in her yard creating more work for her husband.  Ms. Jackson stated 
these trees belong to the City, so why should they be responsible for all of the problems they're 
causing?  She said the Street Department came out, looked at the trees and since they were not 
dead, merely trimmed some of the limbs.  Ms. Jackson stated she's made numerous calls to the 
City, and since trees are being cut down all around Crest Avenue, she can't understand why her 
issues have not been addressed. 

 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

None 
J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

None 
K. CONSENT AGENDA - (1 voice vote required) 

1. Tub Grinding 2025 
 

Councilmember Fuller moved to approve the Consent Agenda, it was seconded by Councilmember 
Tieman, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – (Voice vote on each item as needed) 
1. City Manager Updates 

None 
 

2. CUP-22-09 - Application to amend a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a reduction of up to 
20% in the number of required off-street parking spaces for Lot 9 of the Market at Olive, Plat 2. 
Mr. Rose stated staff is recommending that Council consider a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
to allow for a 20% reduction in the number of required off-street parking spaces for Lot 9 of the 
Market at Olive, Plat 2. 
 

Dr. Wagner stated this is the building located on the south side of Olive with Panera Bread.  Originally 
two restaurants were proposed and now they are proposing to have three, which required a change in 
the parking ratio.  The initial reduction was from 93 spaces to 83; a 10.75% reduction.  The new 
requirement is for 114 spaces, and they are asking that they be reduced to 88 spaces, which is a 
14.23% reduction.  So, the amendment is from 10.75% to 14.23%.  He stated there are no physical 
changes being proposed for the site. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Tieman, and the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. CUP-24-05 - Application to amend an existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a restaurant at 
7489 Delmar Boulevard. 

E - 1 - 3



 

March 10, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes                          Page 4 of 5 
 

Mr. Rose stated staff is recommending that Council consider an application to amend an 
existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a restaurant located at 7489 Delmar Boulevard. 
 

Dr. Wagner stated this is for the El Pietro Restaurant on the corner of Delmar and Hanley.  The 
amendment involves the addition of a second curb cut on Hanley Road and a reduction in parking 
spaces from 31 to 29; a 5.2% reduction of the parking ratio, which was not included in the initial Site 
Plan. 
 
Councilmember Fuller moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - (Roll call vote required on 2nd and 3rd readings) 

1. BILL 9564 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 230.090 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO YARD WASTE, 
RECYCLABLES AND PROHIBITED SOLID WASTE,  BY DELETING THE REQUIREMENT 
THAT YARD WASTE BAGS EXHIBIT A YARD WASTE STICKER.  Bill Number 9564 was read 
for the second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Fuller moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Mayor Crow asked when the Ordinance would go into effect?  Mr. Rose stated if approved, he intends 
to put it into practice tomorrow and implement a buy-back program for unused stickers.  Mayor Crow 
stated he is grateful to get rid of this program and hopes that the Council and staff will communicate 
this change to residents at every chance they get. 
 
Councilmember Fuller stated he is aware of a vendor that has a drawer full of these stickers, so would 
the buy-back program also include vendors?  Mr. Rose stated that it would.   
 
Councilmember McMahon asked if the buy-back program would include residents that bought them in 
bulk?  Mr. Rose stated that it would.  
 
Councilmember Tieman asked if people should bring their stickers to City Hall?  Mr. Rose stated Mr. 
Cole is working on a process that would allow everyone to bring them to City Hall for redemption.  But 
at this point, he is uncertain whether they will receive cash or be issued a check at a later date.  
 
Councilmember Clay asked if the City's buy-back program would be dollar for dollar?  Mr. Rose stated 
that would be his intention. 
 
Mayor Crow stated that based on these questions the City's communication plan will have to be well 
thought out to ensure this will be a positive experience for residents. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Mr. McMahon, Councilmember Brenner, Councilmember Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, 
Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Tieman, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None  

 
2. BILL 9565 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 230.110 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE 

OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO SOLID WASTE 
COLLECTION FEES AND BILLING, BY INCREASING REFUSE COLLECTION RATES ON 
ALL UNITS.  Bill Number 9565 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Fuller. 
 
Councilmember Brenner stated during the Study Session on this topic Councilmember Fuller asked if 
any thought had been given to allowing quarterly payments and she would agree, because as the fees 
go up she can see it becoming a hardship for some people. 

E - 1 - 4



March 10, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes    Page 5 of 5 

Mr. Rose asked Mr. Cole if the system could bill every quarter?  Mr. Cole stated he believes that it can 
be since they used to bill every month and switched to a six-month billing cycle in 2013.  

Mr. Rose stated the ability to produce quarterly payments is something they will need to study in depth 
to determine the impacts and whether it will be a more efficient process.   

Councilmember Clay asked if the City could offer electronic billing?  Mr. Cole stated while they do not 
have automatic billing at this time, they do have Online Bill Pay where residents can sign up on the 
website and once a bill is posted have it sent to them via email.  

Councilmember McMahon stated although he can't remember how many zones there are, he thought 
the City utilized zones to distribute bills every month rather than sending them all out to the entire city 
at once.  Mr. Cole stated that is correct.  When they switched to the six-month billing cycle it was 
broken out between fiber routes; i.e., March 1st would be Route 1, April would be Route 2, and so on. 
He stated there is a break in August, and the next billing cycle for Route 1 would resume in 
September. 

Councilmember Fuller questioned whether limiting the quarterly billing to seniors only would reduce 
the toil on staff?  Mr. Cole stated it's possible, but he would have to talk with his vendor to see if that 
could be accomplished 

Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Brenner, Councilmember Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember 
Clay, Councilmember Tieman, Councilmember McMahon, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None  

N. NEW BUSINESS
Resolutions - (Voice vote required) 
None 

Bills - (No vote required on introduction and 1st reading) 
None 

O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions
3. Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes
4. Other Discussions/Business

P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed)
None

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS
None

Councilmember Tieman moved to adjourn the Regular Session, it was seconded by Councilmember 
Clay, and the motion carried unanimously. 

R. ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Crow thanked everyone and adjourned the Regular Session at 6:58 p.m.

Kena Dean
Acting City Clerk

E - 1 - 5



E - 1 - 6



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20250324-01

Westgate Avenue Improvements Project-  New Construction Contract amount

Mirela Celaj Public Works
Consent No

City Manager recommends the approval of the revised contract amount, due to the 
unforeseen overruns and underruns that have impacted the project budget.

The new contract amount exceeds the original contract amount by $25,793.46 
which will be paid by the Capital Improvement Sales Tax fund.

25,793.46 12-40-90-8040

The original contract amount was $1,076,588.96. After completion of construction, it was determined there would need to 
be contractual adjustments to reflect the final field measured quantities. Overruns calculated from final field measurements 
= $37,598.13. Underruns calculated from final field measurements = -$67,285.07. 
Previous Overruns = $65,600.40 and Previous Underruns = -$10,120.00,  
Summation of all overruns and underruns above will provide the Final Project Total = $1,102,382.42

After the completion of construction, it was determined that contractual adjustments were 
necessary to reflect the final field-measured quantities. As detailed in the final Change Order 
#5 (attached), the contract amount has exceeded the original contract agreement by 
$25,793.46 This additional amount is necessary to pay the contractor and to complete the 
project closeout.

Consent Agenda Item-January 8-2024(including Ranieri contract Agreement) 
Change order # 5

Improved Infrastructure

City Manager, Gegory Rose March 24, 2025

K - 1 - 1



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20240108-02

Westgate-STP-5402(616), Construction Agreement 

Darin Girdler, Director of Public Works Public Works/Ward 3
Consent Yes

City Manager recommends approval of the agreement with Ranieri 
Construction and authorization to execute to contract contained in Council's 
packet

$1,076,588.96 (City Share: $329,318.44  Federal Share: $747,270.52)  

$1,076,588.96 12-40-90_8080

Westgate is a federally funded STP project. The City advertised for bids for this project and received four (4)
responsive bids and all bidders were pre-qualified with MoDOT. The lowest bid of $848,848.51 was received from 
Sweetens Concrete Services, LLC but was rejected by MoDOT, due to not fulfilling (DBE) goal for this project. The 
second lowest bid of $1,076,588.96 was received from Raineri Construction and was approved by MoDOT.

The City applied for the funding of this project a few years ago and was granted a Surface 
Transportation Program Grant to make improvements to  Westgate from Delmar  Blvd. to 
Olive Blvd. The proposed improvements include new ADA compliant sidewalks and curb 
ramps, new roadway resurfacing, new paved approaches, improved pavement marking, 
shared use bicycle markings, improved signage, and other appurtenances. 

1. Contract
2.Construction Bid Concurrence

Preserve and improve public street-sidewalk Infrastructure

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 2



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 3



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 4



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 5



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 6



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 7



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 8



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 9



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 10



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 11



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 12



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 13



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 14



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 15



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 16



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 17



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 18



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 19



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 20



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 21



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 22



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 23



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 24



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 25



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 26



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 27



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 28



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 29



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 30



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 31



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 32



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 33



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 34



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 35



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 36



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 37



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 38



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 39



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 40



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 41



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 42



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 43



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 44



20
24

 A
ge

nd
a I

tem

K - 1 - 45



K - 1 - 46



K - 1 - 47



K - 1 - 48



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

L - 1 - 1

CM20250324-01

Recognition of Parks, Streets and Sanitation Personnel (Snow Removal) and other  City 
Manager Updates.

Administration - All
City Manager's Report

Recognition of Parks, Streets and Sanitation Personnel (Snow Removal) and other  City 
Manager Updates.

City Manager, Gregory Rose 3/24/2025





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20250324-02

Second (2nd) Quarter Financial Report - December 31, 2024

Keith Cole - Director of Finance Finance / All
City Manager's Report Yes

City Manager is recommending acceptance of the 2nd Quarter Financial Report as of 
December 31, 2024.

General Fund - revenues (under) expenses ($1,028,796); Economic Development Retail Sales Tax - revenues over expenses $112,922; Capital 
Improvement Sales Tax - revenues (under) expenses ($600,588); Park Stormwater Sales Tax - revenues (under) expenses ($1,286,029); 
Public Safety Sales Tax - revenues (under) expenses ($1,425,396); Fire Protection Sales Tax - revenues over (under) expenses are equal. 

n/a n/a

n/a n/a

A PowerPoint presentation will consist of an overview on the major funds for the 2nd Quarter 
of fiscal year 2025, as of December 31, 2024.

Major Funds consists of:  General Fund, Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Fund, 
Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund, Park Stormwater Sales Tax Fund, Public Safety Sales 
Tax Fund, and Fire Protection Service Sales Tax Fund

n/a

1. PowerPoint Presentation - 2nd Quarter, December 31, 2024, FY2025
2. 2nd Quarter Financial Report - Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gregory Rose March 24, 2025

L - 2- 1



2n
d 

Q
ua

rte
r D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
4

FY
20

25
 P

re
se

nt
at

io
n M

ar
ch

 2
4,

 2
02

5
By

Ke
ith

 C
ol

e
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

1

L - 2- 2



G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
- R

ev
en

ue
s

Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t  

 
 

$2
5,

39
0,

75
0

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l  

 
 

 
$1

2,
22

5,
15

5

Ac
tu

al
 a

s 
%

 o
f A

dj
us

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
 

 
48

.1
%

In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

4 
 

$1
,3

76
,4

31

Ke
y 

Po
in

ts
:


In

cr
ea

se
 in

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Fe

es
 a

nd
 P

er
m

its
 o

f r
ou

gh
ly

 $
25

3,
00

0.
 In

cr
ea

se
 d

ue
 to

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 o

n 
Bu

ild
in

g 
an

d 
Zo

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
its

.


In

cr
ea

se
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

ha
rg

es
 o

f r
ou

gh
ly

 $
17

4,
00

0.
  T

he
 in

cr
ea

se
 m

ai
nl

y 
fro

m
 c

ol
le

ct
in

g 
Am

bu
la

nc
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
ch

ar
ge

s.


In

cr
ea

se
 in

 In
te

re
st

 R
ev

en
ue

 o
f r

ou
gh

ly
 $

94
,0

00
.  

In
cr

ea
se

 d
ue

 to
 fa

vo
ra

bl
e 

m
ar

ke
t c

on
di

tio
ns

 in
 2

nd
 Q

ua
rte

r.


In

cr
ea

se
 in

 O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
 o

f r
ou

gh
ly

 $
84

1,
00

0.
  I

nc
re

as
e 

m
ai

nl
y 

fro
m

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
fu

nd
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

Su
bt

ex
t 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t I
ss

ua
nc

e 
Fe

es
, L

eg
al

 F
ee

s,
 S

ea
fo

od
 C

ity
 fo

r o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 b
ills

, a
nd

 S
t. 

Lo
ui

s 
Ar

ea
 In

s 
Tr

us
t f

or
 In

s 
Su

rp
lu

s 
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n.

   
   

O
ve

ra
ll,

 re
ve

nu
es

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

t o
f b

ud
ge

t s
ho

w
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f 1
0.

6%
 w

he
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
4.

2

L - 2- 3



G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
– 

R
ev

en
ue

s 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 a
s 

of
 Y

TD
 

Ac
tu

al
s

3

L - 2- 4



G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
- E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t  

 
 

 
$3

0,
56

8,
37

1

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l  

 
 

 
 

$1
4,

78
6,

46
9

Ac
tu

al
 a

s 
%

 o
f A

dj
us

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
 

 
48

.4
%

In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

4 
 

$8
89

,6
60

Ke
y 

Po
in

ts
:


In

cr
ea

se
 in

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
in

 P
ol

ic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f r
ou

gh
ly

 $
31

6,
00

0.
  T

hi
s 

is
 m

ai
nl

y 
du

e 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 p
er

so
nn

el
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 w
ag

es
, o

ve
rti

m
e,

 a
nd

 m
ed

ic
al

 in
su

ra
nc

e.
   

 


In

cr
ea

se
 in

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
in

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f r
ou

gh
ly

 $
23

7,
00

0.
 T

hi
s 

is
 m

ai
nl

y 
du

e 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 

pe
rs

on
ne

l s
er

vi
ce

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 w

ag
es

 a
nd

 o
ve

rti
m

e.


In

cr
ea

se
 in

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
in

 A
qu

at
ic

s 
of

 ro
ug

hl
y 

$3
48

,0
00

. T
hi

s 
is

 m
ai

nl
y 

du
e 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

(M
id

w
es

t P
oo

l M
an

ag
em

en
t),

 e
le

ct
ric

ity
, a

nd
 w

at
er

.

O
ve

ra
ll,

 th
e 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f b

ud
ge

t i
nc

re
as

ed
 b

y 
4.

3%
 w

he
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

4.

4

L - 2- 5



G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
– 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 a

s 
of

 Y
TD

 
Ac

tu
al

s

5

L - 2- 6



Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t R
et

ai
l S

al
es

 T
ax

 - 
R

ev
en

ue
s

Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t 

 
 

 
 

$1
,2

00
,3

00

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l 

 
 

 
 

 
$3

72
,8

36

Ac
tu

al
 a

s 
%

 o
f A

dj
us

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
  

31
.1

%

In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
   

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

4 
 

 
$1

9,
17

4

Ke
y 

Po
in

ts
:


Sa

le
s 

Ta
x 

re
ve

nu
e 

fo
r t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

5 
ha

s 
sh

ow
n 

an
 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
f r

ou
gh

ly
 5

.4
%

 w
he

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

qu
ar

te
r o

f 
FY

20
24

. 


O

f t
he

 $
37

2,
83

6 
sa

le
s 

ta
x 

re
ve

nu
e,

 ro
ug

hl
y 

$2
29

,8
34

, o
r 6

1.
6%

, i
s 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
TI

F.
  


N

ot
e:

  s
al

es
 ta

x 
re

ve
nu

e 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
po

in
t o

f s
al

e

6

L - 2- 7



Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t R
et

ai
l S

al
es

 T
ax

 - 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
Ad

ju
st

ed
 B

ud
ge

t 
 

 
 

 
$8

82
,9

15

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l 

 
 

 
 

 
$2

59
,9

14

Ac
tu

al
 a

s 
%

 o
f A

dj
us

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
  

29
.4

%

In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
   

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

4 
 

 
$1

00
,9

67

Ke
y 

Po
in

ts
:


In

cr
ea

se
 in

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
m

ai
nl

y 
fro

m
 fa

ça
de

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

ro
gr

am
, 

ev
en

ts
 &

 re
ce

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l s

er
vi

ce
s.

 A
ct

ua
l e

xp
en

se
s 

th
us

 
fa

r, 
ap

pe
ar

s 
re

as
on

ab
le

.  
 

7

L - 2- 8



C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t S

al
es

 T
ax

 - 
R

ev
en

ue
s

Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t 

 
 

 
 

$2
,9

40
,2

00

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l 

 
 

 
 

 
$1

,2
83

,1
14

Ac
tu

al
 a

s 
%

 o
f A

dj
us

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
  

43
.6

%

In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 

   
sa

m
e 

qu
ar

te
r o

f F
Y2

02
4 

 
 

$3
24

,9
79

Ke
y 

Po
in

ts
:


In

cr
ea

se
 d

ue
 to

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t o

n 
W

es
tg

at
e 

Av
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 a

 re
fu

nd
 e

xc
es

s 
co

st
 s

ha
re

 fo
r R

iv
er

 D
es

 P
er

es
 o

f $
54

,1
10

.


N

ot
e:

  r
ev

en
ue

 is
 g

en
er

at
ed

 fr
om

 p
oo

le
d 

sa
le

s 
ta

x 
fro

m
 o

th
er

 c
iti

es
 in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 a

nd
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
pe

r c
ap

ita
.  

 

8

L - 2- 9



C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t S

al
es

 T
ax

 - 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
Ad

ju
st

ed
 B

ud
ge

t 
 

 
 

 
$2

,4
17

,1
98

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l 

 
 

 
 

 
$5

44
,3

09

Ac
tu

al
 a

s 
%

 o
f A

dj
us

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
  

22
.5

%

In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
   

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

4 
 

 
$(

1,
66

4,
98

5)

Ke
y 

Po
in

ts
:


D

ec
re

as
e 

in
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

m
ai

nl
y 

fro
m

 c
ap

ita
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 
oc

cu
rre

d 
in

 2
nd

 Q
ua

rte
r o

f F
Y2

02
4.

  I
n 

PY
, t

he
re

 w
er

e 
so

m
e 

bi
g 

st
re

et
 

ov
er

la
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
hi

ch
 o

cc
ur

re
d.

  T
hu

s 
fa

r, 
ex

pe
ns

es
 a

re
 d

ow
n 

ro
ug

hl
y 

45
.5

%
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

.  
  

 

9

L - 2- 10



Pa
rk

 a
nd

 S
to

rm
w

at
er

 S
al

es
 T

ax
 - 

R
ev

en
ue

s

Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t 

 
 

 
 

$2
,1

00
,2

00

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l 

 
 

 
 

 
$5

87
,9

44

Ac
tu

al
 a

s 
%

 o
f A

dj
us

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
  

28
.0

%

In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
   

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

4 
 

 
$1

3,
68

9

Ke
y 

Po
in

ts
:


Sa

le
s 

Ta
x 

re
ve

nu
e 

fo
r t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

5 
ha

s 
sh

ow
n 

a 
sl

ig
ht

 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f r
ou

gh
ly

 2
.4

%
 w

he
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

4.
 


O

f t
he

 $
58

7,
94

4 
sa

le
s 

ta
x 

re
ve

nu
e,

 ro
ug

hl
y 

$3
01

,9
40

, o
r 5

1.
4%

, i
s 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
TI

F.
  


N

ot
e:

  s
al

es
 ta

x 
re

ve
nu

e 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
po

in
t o

f s
al

e

3r
d  q

ua
rte

r r
ev

en
ue

s 
fo

r F
Y2

02
1 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 b

ud
ge

t 
10

L - 2- 11



Pa
rk

 a
nd

 S
to

rm
w

at
er

 S
al

es
 T

ax
 - 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t 

 
 

 
 

$1
,4

01
,8

65
YT

D
 A

ct
ua

l 
 

 
 

 
 

$6
21

,4
85

Ac
tu

al
 a

s 
%

 o
f A

dj
us

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
 

 
44

.3
%

In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 

   
sa

m
e 

qu
ar

te
r o

f F
Y2

02
4 

 
 

$4
62

,0
60

Ke
y 

Po
in

ts
:


In

cr
ea

se
 in

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
m

ai
nl

y 
fro

m
 u

p 
fro

nt
 c

os
ts

 o
f $

36
9,

33
4 

to
 th

e 
Ar

m
y 

C
or

ps
 o

f E
ng

in
ee

rs
 O

M
C

I S
to

rm
w

at
er

 R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t D

et
en

tio
n 

Ba
si

n 
4 

pr
oj

ec
t.


N

ot
e:

  o
nc

e 
th

e 
D

et
en

tio
n 

Ba
si

n 
4 

pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
co

m
pl

et
e,

 w
e 

ca
n 

re
qu

es
t 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t f
or

 th
e 

$3
69

,3
34

. 


In
cr

ea
se

 in
 p

ar
ks

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f r
ou

gh
ly

 $
90

,0
00

 a
t R

ab
e 

an
d 

M
et

ca
lfe

 P
ar

ks
 

fo
r p

la
yg

ro
un

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t.

   
11

L - 2- 12



Pu
bl

ic
 S

af
et

y 
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x 

- R
ev

en
ue

s

Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t 

 
 

 
 

$2
,4

00
,2

00

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l 

 
 

 
 

 
$7

53
,9

29

Ac
tu

al
 a

s 
%

 o
f A

dj
us

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
  

31
.4

%

In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 

 
sa

m
e 

qu
ar

te
r o

f F
Y2

02
4 

 
$(

16
,7

01
)

Ke
y 

Po
in

ts
:


A 

sm
al

l d
ec

re
as

e,
 b

ut
 th

us
 fa

r, 
re

ve
nu

es
 a

pp
ea

rs
 to

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 re

as
on

 w
he

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 2

nd
 q

ua
rte

r o
f F

Y2
02

4.
  

 

12

L - 2- 13



Pu
bl

ic
 S

af
et

y 
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x 

- E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
Ad

ju
st

ed
 B

ud
ge

t 
 

 
 

 
$7

5,
31

4

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l 

 
 

 
 

 
$2

23
,7

92

Ac
tu

al
 a

s 
%

 o
f A

dj
us

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
  

29
7.

1%

In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

4 
 

 
$(

53
,0

16
)

Ke
y 

Po
in

ts
:


Th

e 
de

cr
ea

se
 is

 d
ue

 to
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 p
ay

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 le

as
ed

 fi
re

 tr
uc

k.
  L

ea
se

 
w

as
 p

ai
d 

of
f i

n 
FY

20
24

.


O

f t
he

 $
22

3,
79

2 
ex

pe
ns

es
, r

ou
gh

ly
 $

17
3,

00
0 

w
ill 

be
 re

qu
es

te
d 

fo
r 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
An

ne
x/

Tr
in

ity
 R

en
ov

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t. 
   

   
  

13

L - 2- 14



Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Sa
le

s 
Ta

x 
- R

ev
en

ue
s

Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t 

 
 

 
 

$1
,0

50
,0

00

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l 

 
 

 
 

 
$2

93
,9

72

Ac
tu

al
 a

s 
%

 o
f A

dj
us

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
  

28
.0

%

In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
   

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

4 
 

 
$6

,8
51

Ke
y 

Po
in

ts
:


Sa

le
s 

Ta
x 

re
ve

nu
e 

fo
r t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
qu

ar
te

r o
f F

Y2
02

5 
ha

s 
sh

ow
n 

a 
sl

ig
ht

 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f r
ou

gh
ly

 2
.4

%
 w

he
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f 

FY
20

24
.  

R
ev

en
ue

 a
pp

ea
rs

 to
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 re
as

on
. 


O

f t
he

 $
29

3,
97

2 
sa

le
s 

ta
x 

re
ve

nu
e,

 ro
ug

hl
y 

$1
50

,9
70

, o
r 5

1.
4%

, i
s 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
TI

F.
  


N

ot
e:

  F
Y2

02
5 

Bu
dg

et
, F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x 

w
as

 b
ro

ke
n 

ou
t i

nt
o 

its
 o

w
n 

fu
nd

. S
al

es
 ta

x 
re

ve
nu

e 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
po

in
t o

f s
al

e.

14

L - 2- 15



Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Sa
le

s 
Ta

x 
- E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s


N

o 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

bu
dg

et
ed

 fo
r F

Y2
02

5.
  


H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 fu

ll 
am

ou
nt

 o
f s

al
es

 ta
x 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fo
r t

he
 fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r, 
w

ill 
be

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

ov
er

 to
 th

e 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d.

  A
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
4,

 
$2

93
,9

72
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

tra
ns

fe
rre

d 
in

to
 th

e 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d.

  

15

L - 2- 16



Q
ue

st
io

ns

16

L - 2- 17



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

General Fund Revenues:

Property Taxes 4,029,500         4,029,500         2,312,255         57.4% 2,342,168         55.0%
Sales and Use Taxes 7,600,000         7,600,000         2,738,603         36.0% 3,022,411         34.4%
Gross Receipts Taxes 6,130,000         6,130,000         2,667,279         43.5% 2,541,588         39.6%
Intergovernmental 2,615,000         2,615,000         1,178,949         45.1% 1,132,262         41.5%
Grants - - 86,866              100.0% 2,519 0.3%
Licenses 707,300            707,300            79,951              11.3% 99,962              11.4%
Inspection Fees and Permits 1,329,450         1,329,450         640,951            48.2% 387,736            29.2%
Charges for Municipal Services 1,558,000         1,558,000         771,551            49.5% 597,758            35.8%
Parks and Recreation Fees 445,000            445,000            117,981            26.5% 67,339              16.8%
Municipal Court and Parking 663,500            663,500            380,012            57.3% 339,348            44.5%
Interest Revenue 36,000              36,000              200,873            558.0% 107,130            27.6%
Other Revenues 277,000            277,000            1,049,884         379.0% 208,503            56.7%

Total Revenues 25,390,750       25,390,750       12,225,155       48.1% 10,848,724 37.5%

General Fund Expenditures:

Legislative Services 233,710            233,710            107,613            107,613            46.0% 106,828            47.0%
City Manager's Office 755,377            755,377            428,611            428,611            56.7% 636,500            57.8%
Communications 423,480            423,480            175,740            175,740            41.5% 178,688            53.2%
Human Resources 377,707            377,707            151,444            151,837            40.1% 156,299            42.3%
Finance Department 1,106,400         1,106,400         514,449            514,449            46.5% 503,585            52.5%
Information Technology 493,898            493,898            339,062            380,424            68.7% 250,797            42.7%
Municipal Court 466,445            466,445            212,328            212,328            45.5% 206,799            47.4%
Police Department 10,944,654       10,944,654       4,946,761         5,299,748         45.2% 4,631,662         46.4%
Fire Department 7,104,218         7,104,218         3,281,336         3,377,409         46.2% 3,043,975         44.2%
Public Works - Admin. 294,436            294,436            84,381              84,938              28.7% 142,283            52.5%
Public Area Maintenance 1,555,456         1,555,456         699,381            721,441            45.0% 606,227            38.1%
Facilities Maintenance 990,952            990,952            543,779            543,779            54.9% 595,071            53.7%
Public Works - Capital Imp - - 155,060            175,059            100.0% 57,959              9.4%
Planning & Development 2,151,925         2,151,925         938,508            938,508            43.6% 1,073,804         54.0%
Parks & Recreation - Parks Maint 1,999,694         1,999,694         1,062,760         1,158,325         53.1% 1,041,851         50.0%
Community Center 172,476            172,476            52,241              52,241              30.3% 60,381              24.5%
Aquatics 581,213            570,213            361,189            759,943            63.3% 12,758              1.9%
Centennial Commons 916,330            927,330            422,138            422,138            45.5% 376,932            34.8%
Parks & Recreation - Capital Imp - - 309,688            364,758            100.0% 214,410            22.8%

Total Expenditures 30,568,371       30,568,371       14,786,469       15,869,289       48.4% 13,896,809       44.1%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (5,177,621)        (5,177,621)        (2,561,314)        (3,048,085)        

Insurance Recoveries - - 43,520              - 
Transfer In from Other Funds 5,185,786         5,185,786         3,896,998         4,417,696         
Transfer Out to Other Funds (2,308,000)        (2,308,000)        (2,408,000)        (1,762,000)        
Total Other Financing Sources 2,877,786         2,877,786         1,532,518         2,655,696         

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures (2,299,835)        (2,299,835)        (1,028,796)        (392,389)           

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of December 31, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2- 18



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Economic Development Retail Sales Tax

Sales and Use Taxes 1,200,000         1,200,000         372,836            31.1%  353,655            31.5%
Interest Revenue 300                   300                   -                    0.0% 7                       1.4%

Total Revenues 1,200,300         1,200,300         372,836            31.1% 353,662            31.5%

Economic Development Retail Sales Tax

Personnel Services 224,325            224,325            100,667            100,667            44.9% 107,640            42.4%
Contractual Services 507,590            507,590            73,659              73,659              14.5% 67,621              5.5%
Materials & Supplies 1,000                1,000                -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%
Capital Outlay 150,000            150,000            85,588              85,588              57.1% (16,314)             -9.3%

Total Expenditures 882,915            882,915            259,914            259,914            29.4% 158,947            9.5%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 317,385            317,385            112,922            194,715            

Transfer Out -                    -                    -                    (50,000)             

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 317,385            317,385            112,922            144,715            

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of December 31, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2- 19



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Capital Improvement Sales Tax:

Sales and Use Taxes 2,940,000         2,940,000         927,368            31.5%  958,096            32.6%
Grant Revenue -                    -                    301,635            100.0% -                    0.0%
Miscellaneous Revenues -                    -                    54,111              100.0% -                    0.0%
Interest Revenue 200                   200                   -                    0.0% 39                     3.3%

Total Revenues 2,940,200         2,940,200         1,283,114         43.6% 958,135            32.6%

Capital Improvement Sales Tax:

Personnel Services 351,361            351,361            169,059            169,059            48.1% 179,176            49.3%
Contractual Services 1,997                1,997                498                   498                   24.9% 497                   41.4%
Capital Outlay 2,063,840         2,063,840         374,752            607,180            18.2% 2,029,621         70.4%

Total Expenditures 2,417,198         2,417,198         544,309            776,737            22.5% 2,209,294         68.0%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 523,002            523,002            738,805            (1,251,159)        

Insurance Recoveries -                    -                    10,607              -                    
Transfer Out (1,782,760)        (1,782,760)        (1,350,000)        (1,186,000)        

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (1,259,758)        (1,259,758)        (600,588)           (2,437,159)        

FY 2025

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
City of University City

As of December 31, 2024

L - 2- 20



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Park and Stormwater Sales Tax:

Sales and Use Taxes 2,100,000         2,100,000         587,944            28.0%  574,242            28.7%
Interest Revenue 200                   200                   -                    0.0% 13                     1.3%

Total Revenues 2,100,200         2,100,200         587,944            28.0% 574,255            27.4%

Park and Stormwater Sales Tax:

Personnel Services 316,109            316,109            129,616            129,616            41.0% 137,061            48.3%
Contractual Services 756                   756                   3,464                3,464                458.2% 272                   4.5%
Capital outlay 1,085,000         1,085,000         488,405            504,307            45.0% 22,092              1.6%

Total Expenditures 1,401,865         1,401,865         621,485            637,387            44.3% 159,425            9.6%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 698,335            698,335            (33,541)             414,830            

Transfer Out (1,252,488)        (1,252,488)        (1,252,488)        (1,570,674)        

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (554,153)           (554,153)           (1,286,029)        (1,155,844)        

FY 2025
As of December 31, 2024

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

L - 2- 21



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Public Safety Sales Tax:

Sales and Use Taxes 2,400,000         2,400,000         753,929            31.4%  770,599            33.2%
Interest Revenue 200                   200                   -                    0.0% 31                     3.1%

Total Revenues 2,400,200         2,400,200         753,929            31.4% 770,630            33.2%

Public Safety Sales Tax:

Personnel Services 75,314              75,314              35,040              35,040              46.5% 34,976              49.0%
Capital Outlay -                    -                    188,752            188,752            100.0% 127,421            13.2%
Debt Service -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% 114,411            99.8%

Total Expenditures 75,314              75,314              223,792            223,792            297.1% 276,808            23.5%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 2,324,886         2,324,886         530,137            493,822            

Transfer Out (1,955,533)        (1,955,533)        (1,955,533)        (1,911,597)        
Total Other Financing Sources (1,955,533)        (1,955,533)        (1,955,533)        (1,911,597)        

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 369,353            369,353            (1,425,396)        (1,417,775)        

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
As of December 31, 2024

FY 2025

City of University City

L - 2- 22



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Fire Protection Sales Tax:

Sales and Use Taxes 1,050,000         1,050,000         293,972            28.0% -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 1,050,000         1,050,000         293,972            28.0% -                    0.0%

Fire Protection Sales Tax:

Personnel Services -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%
Contractual Services -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%
Capital Outlay -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Expenditures -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 1,050,000         1,050,000         293,972            -                    

Transfer Out to General Fund (1,050,000)        (1,050,000)        (293,972)           -                    
Total Other Financing Sources (1,050,000)        (1,050,000)        (293,972)           -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures -                    -                    -                    -                    

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of December 31, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2- 23



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Fleet Operations:

Service to Other Jurisdictions -                    -                    5,109                100.0% 43                     100.0%
Gain or loss on disposal -                    -                    5,000                100.0%  -                    0.0%

Total Revenue -                    -                    10,109              100.0% 43                     100.0%

Fleet Operations:

Expenditures 1,690,757         1,690,757         991,972            991,972            58.7% 1,256,615         72.9%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (1,690,757)        (1,690,757)        (981,863)           (1,256,572)        

Transfer In from Other Funds 1,700,000         1,700,000         1,700,000         1,750,000         

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 9,243                9,243                718,137            493,428            

As of December 31, 2024
FY 2025

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

L - 2- 24



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Debt Service Fund:

Other Revenues -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0%  -                    0.0%

Total Revenues -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Debt Service Fund:

Expenses -                    -                    -                    0.0% 12                     100.0%

Total Expenditures -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% 12                     100.0%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) -                    -                    -                    (12)                    

Transfer In from Other Funds 1,000,000         1,000,000         1,000,000         -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 1,000,000         1,000,000         1,000,000         (12)                    

FY 2025

City of University City

As of December 31, 2024
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

L - 2- 25



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Sewer Lateral Fund:

Service Charges 570,000            570,000            373,683            65.6%  376,733            67.0%

Total Revenues 570,000            570,000            373,683            65.6% 376,733            67.0%

Sewer Lateral Fund:

Personal Services 93,005              93,005              42,116              42,116              45.3% 43,898              46.7%
Contractual Services 8,250                8,250                8,419                8,419                102.0% 8,499                96.8%
Sewer Lateral Reimbursement 400,000            400,000            105,186            127,296            26.3% 95,637              25.3%

Total Expenditures 501,255            501,255            155,721            177,831            31.1% 148,034            30.8%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 68,745              68,745              217,962            228,699            

Transfer Out to General Fund (45,000)             (45,000)             (45,000)             (57,220)             

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 23,745              23,745              172,962            171,479            

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of December 31, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2- 26



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Solid Waste Fund:

Service Charges 3,400,000         3,400,000         2,274,515         66.9% 2,208,368         68.3%
Miscellaneous Revenues 40,200              40,200              16,011              39.8%  9,654                24.0%
Grants 120,000            120,000            -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 3,560,200         3,560,200         2,290,526         64.3% 2,218,022         67.4%

Solid Waste Fund:

Administration 294,359            294,359            127,607            127,607            43.4% 167,540            59.8%
Operations 2,486,135         2,486,135         1,362,202         1,362,202         54.8% 1,200,412         46.4%
Leaf Collection 688,133            688,133            276,405            565,155            40.2% 340,242            81.0%
Capital Improvement 275,000            275,000            141,317            813,121            51.4% 2,410                0.6%
Grants 120,000            120,000            1,383                1,383                1.2% 7,565                6.3%

Total Expenditures 3,863,627         3,863,627         1,908,914         2,869,468         49.4% 1,718,169         44.7%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (303,427)           (303,427)           381,612            499,853            

Transfer In -                    -                    200,000            -                 
Transfer Out -                    -                    -                    (236,000)           

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (303,427)           (303,427)           581,612            263,853            

City of University City

FY 2025
As of December 31, 2024

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

L - 2- 27



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Grants:

Grant Revenue 653,000            653,000            -                    0.0%  20,323              2.0%

Total Revenues 653,000            653,000            -                    0.0% 20,323              2.0%

Grants:

Capital outlay 653,000            653,000            -                    -                    0.0% 8,744                0.8%

Total Expenditures 653,000            653,000            -                    -                    0.0% 8,744                0.8%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) -                    -                    -                    11,579              

Transfer Out to General Fund -                    -                    -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures -                    -                    -                    11,579              

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of December 31, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2- 28



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Capital Projects Fund:

Interest Revenue -                    -                    478,080            100.0% -                    0.0%

Total Revenues -                    -                    478,080            100.0% -                    0.0%

Capital Projects Fund:

Capital Outlay -                    -                    2,359,432         26,358,816       100.0% -                    0.0%
Other -                    -                    403,982            403,982            100.0% -                    0.0%
Debt Service -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Expenditures -                    -                    2,763,414         26,762,798       100.0% -                    0.0%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) -                    -                    (2,285,334)        -                    

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds -                    -                    25,795,000       -                    
Original Issue Premium -                    -                    1,708,111         -                    
Transfer In -                    -                    -                    -                    
Transfer Out -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                    27,503,111       -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures -                    -                    25,217,777       -                    

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of December 31, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2- 29



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Parking Garage:

Parking Revenue 115,000            115,000            62,527              54.4%  54,446              47.6%
Miscellaneous 54,000              54,000              26,962              49.9% 26,648              29.5%

Total Revenues 169,000            169,000            89,489              53.0% 81,094              39.6%

Parking Garage:

Personnel Services 20,000              20,000              -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%
Contractual Services 81,770              81,770              46,680              46,680              57.1% 48,939              61.8%
Material and Supplies 18,000              18,000              -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Expenditures 119,770            119,770            46,680              46,680              39.0% 48,939              49.3%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 49,230              49,230              42,809              32,155              

Transfer Out (153,220)           (153,220)           (153,220)           (153,220)           

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (103,990)           (103,990)           (110,411)           (121,065)           

FY 2025

City of University City

As of December 31, 2024
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

L - 2- 30



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Golf Course:

Golf Course Revenue 1,000,000         1,000,000         632,707            63.3% 733,217            81.5%
Miscellaneous -                    -                    -                    0.0%  281                   0.0%

Total Revenues 1,000,000         1,000,000         632,707            63.3% 733,498            81.5%

Golf Course:

Personnel Services 574,760            574,760            285,070            285,070            49.6% 286,115            61.3%
Contractual Services 270,626            283,626            187,828            221,298            66.2% 167,828            66.8%
Material and Supplies 173,600            173,600            82,221              82,221              47.4% 83,187              50.8%
Capital outlay 125,500            125,500            -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Expenditures 1,144,486         1,157,486         555,119            588,589            48.0% 537,130            58.1%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (144,486)           (157,486)           77,588              196,368            

Transfer out (96,020)             (96,020)             (96,020)             (98,220)             

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (240,506)           (253,506)           (18,432)             98,148              

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of December 31, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2- 31



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Police and Fire Pension:

Property Taxes 1,190,000         1,190,000         657,178            55.2%  580,983            58.4%
Miscellaneous 500                   500                   -                    0.0% 1                       0.0%
Interest Revenue 1,250,000         1,250,000         2,134,602         170.8% 1,697,800         339.6%

Total Revenues 2,440,500         2,440,500         2,791,780         114.4% 2,278,784         101.5%

Police and Fire Pension:

Pension Administration 164,151            164,151            85,451              85,451          52.1% 84,887              65.4%
Pension Benefits 2,675,562         2,675,562         1,188,576         1,188,576     44.4% 1,457,660         66.7%

Total Expenditures 2,839,713         2,839,713         1,274,027         1,274,027     44.9% 1,542,547         66.6%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (399,213)          (399,213)          1,517,753         736,237            

Transfer In from Other Funds 545,235            545,235            545,235            545,235            

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 146,022            146,022            2,062,988         1,281,472         

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of December 31, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2- 32



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Non-Uniformed Pension:

Miscellaneous 1,002,650         1,002,650         146,696            14.6% 878,881            50.8%
Interest Revenue 1,250,000         1,250,000         2,355,155         188.4% 1,816,907         363.4%

Total Revenues 2,252,650         2,252,650         2,501,851         111.1% 2,695,788 120.9%

Non-Uniformed Pension:

Pension Administration 215,820            215,820            137,178            137,178        63.6% 104,898            52.4%
Pension Benefits 1,489,540         1,489,540         784,564            784,564        52.7% 785,680            55.4%

Total Expenditures 1,705,360         1,705,360         921,742            921,742        54.0% 890,578 55.0%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 547,290            547,290            1,580,109         1,805,210

Transfer In -                   -                   -                   -                   

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 547,290            547,290            1,580,109         1,805,210

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of December 31, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2- 33



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T2) RPA-1

TIF Revenue -                    -                    861,885            100.0% 667,593            32.5%
CID Revenue -                    -                    914,379            100.0% 709,380            47.0%
Property Taxes (PILOTS) -                    -                    9,796                100.0% 6,361                11.0%
Interest -                    -                    145,195            100.0% 139,711            46.0%

Total Revenues -                   -                   1,931,255         100.0% 1,523,045         38.6%

Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T2) RPA-1

Total Expenditures -                   -                   2,216,369         -                100.0% 1,206,560         26.5%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) -                   -                   (285,114)          316,485            

Transfer In from Other Funds -                   -                   -                   -                   

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures -                   -                   (285,114)          316,485            

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of December 31, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2- 34



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Third Ward Revitalization (T3) RPA-2

Property Taxes -                    -                    9,398                100.0% -                    0.0%
Miscellaneous Revenue 92,000              92,000              -                    0.0% -                    0.0%
Interest -                    -                    62,144              100.0% 19,849              20.6%

Total Revenues 92,000              92,000              71,542              77.8% 19,849              9.7%

Third Ward Revitalization (T3) RPA-2

Total Expenditures -                   -                   48,061              -                100.0% 101,075            45.9%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 92,000              92,000              23,481              (81,226)            

Transfer In 212,000            212,000            212,000            212,000            

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 304,000            304,000            235,481            130,774            

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of December 31, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2- 35



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 2nd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T4) RPA-3

TIF Revenue -                    -                    49,543              100.0% 53,308              90.4%
Property Taxes -                    -                    149,242            100.0% 104,074            22.7%

Total Revenues -                   -                   198,785            100.0% 157,382            30.5%

Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T4) RPA-3

Total Expenditures -                   -                   -                   -                0.0% -                   0.0%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) -                   -                   198,785            157,382            

Transfer In from Other Funds -                    -                    -                    -                   

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures -                   -                   198,785            157,382            

City of University City

As of December 31, 2024
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

FY 2025

L - 2- 36



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

NB20250324-01

Flood Buyout Policy for FEMA’s Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) grant.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development / Wards 2 and 3

New Business - Res 2025-03 yes

City Manager recommends approval.

Use of OMCI Funding and American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds to fund the local match 
project cost of $1,020,710.02.

Fund Reserves Fund Reserves

Flood Buyout Policy for FEMA's Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) grant. 
This $4,082,840.06 grant is 75% federally-funded, with 25% ($1,020,710.02) funded by the City of 
university City. The focus of the grant includes twelve (12) single-family homes on Wilson Avenue 
and the western-most building of the Hafner Court Apartments.

Attached is a Draft Policy.           

Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, Community Quality of Life.

City Manager, Gregory Rose March 24, 2025

N - 1 - 1



1 
 

    RESOLUTION NO. 2025 – 03 

 A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A VOLUNTARY FLOOD BUYOUT POLICY FOR   
 THE ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY THROUGH THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY 
 MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA) HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1. The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has approved 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) funding administered by the State Emergency 
Management Agency (SEMA) for the acquisition and demolition of 13 flood-prone residential 
properties located at: 7439 Ahern Avenue, 7442 Ahern Avenue, 8061 Hafner Court, 1052 
Wilson Avenue, 1075 Wilson Avenue, 1079 Wilson Avenue, 1083 Wilson Avenue, 1087 
Wilson Avenue, 1131 Wilson Avenue, 1149 Wilson Avenue, 1153 Wilson Avenue, 1157 
Wilson Avenue, and 1163 Wilson Avenue. Specifically, $4,082,840.06 was approved for this 
FEMA-DR-4665-MO Project #0014 (Project), 75% ($3,062,130.04) of which will come from 
federal funds and 25% ($1,020,710.02) of which will come from City of University City, 
Missouri (City) funds. The City has executed SEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
Funding Approval and Grant Agreement forms, and the City has agreed to accept 
responsibility for adherence to all grant requirements. 

 Section 2. The City is required by SEMA to adopt a Voluntary Flood Buyout Policy 
for the Project. The City of University City Voluntary Flood Buyout Policy (Policy) is hereby 
adopted in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 Section 3. Representatives of the City are hereby authorized to use the Policy in 
connection with the acquisition and demolition of the residential properties listed in Section 
1.  

 Section 4. The City does hereby provide the necessary assurance that restrictive 
covenants shall be conveyed in the deed to any property the City acquires through the 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, as follows: 1) the property shall be dedicated and 
maintained in perpetuity for uses compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands 
management practices; 2) no new structure(s) will be built on the property, except as 
approved under Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Section 206.434(d) (44 CFR 
206.434(d)); and, 3) after completion of the project, no application for additional disaster 
assistance will be made for any purpose with respect to the property to any federal entity or 
source, and no federal entity or source will provide such assistance. 

Section 5. Only properties meeting the following requirements are eligible to 
participate in the Project: 1) the property must be listed in the original buyout application 
submitted to FEMA or later officially amended to the buyout by both SEMA and FEMA, 
and 2) the property must be a primary residential home. Vacation homes, clubhouses or 
businesses are not eligible for acquisition under this buyout program. 

N - 1 - 2



2 
 

Section 6. As required by SEMA, any changes and additions to the Policy will 
be reviewed by an advisory committee consisting of representatives from SEMA and 
the City. In the event of disputes, differences of interpretation, or disagreements over 
the guidelines, the decision of the City, acting by and through the City Council, shall 
be final and in all cases shall be the determining factor, after consultation with SEMA. 

Section 7. The Mayor, the City Manager and other officers and 
representatives of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take such other 
action as may be necessary to carry out the Project. 

Section 8. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage by the City Council.  

PASSED and ADOPTED this 24th day of March, 2025. 

 

      _____________________________ 

                                                               MAYOR 

 

(Seal) 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

CITY CLERK 
 

 

 

 

N - 1 - 3



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 1 

City of University City Voluntary Buyout Policy: HMGP 
 
The City of University City Council hereby adopts the City of University City, Missouri 
Voluntary Flood Buyout Policy as follows: 

Priorities of Buyout Program 
 
1. Residential properties on the original application. 
2. Residential properties added to the buyout will be given consideration based on: 

a) Frequency of inundation; 
b) Proximity to the creek; and  
c) Elevation 

 
Priority 1: 1131 Wilson Street, Parcel ID: 17J-42-0052 
Priority 2: 7442 Ahern Avenue, Parcel ID: 17J-13-0814 
Priority 3: 1052 Wilson Street, Parcel ID: 17J-13-0070 
Priority 4: 1075 Wilson Street, Parcel ID: 17J-13-0498 
Priority 5: 1079 Wilson Street, Parcel ID: 17J-13-0520 
Priority 6: 1083 Wilson Street, Parcel ID: 17J-13-0603 
Priority 7: 1087 Wilson Street, Parcel ID: 17J-13-0652 
Priority 8: 1149 Wilson Street, Parcel ID: 17J-42-0250 
Priority 9: 1153 Wilson Street, Parcel ID: 17J-42-0315 
Priority 10: 1157 Wilson Street, Parcel ID: 17J-42-0337 
Priority 11: 1163 Wilson Street, Parcel ID: 17J-42-1097 
Priority 12: 7439 Ahern Avenue, Parcel ID: 17J-14-1476 
Priority 13: 8061 Hafner Court, Parcel ID: 17K-54-1194 
 

Open Space Assurance Statement 
 
1.   The City of University City, through adoption of this Policy does hereby provide the 
necessary assurance that all property acquired through the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program will 
be deed restricted, dedicated and maintained in perpetuity for uses outlined below in 44 CFR 
206.434(e).  
 
2.    (e) Property acquisitions and relocation requirements. Property acquisitions and 
relocation projects for open space proposed for funding pursuant to a major disaster 
declared on or after December 3, 2007, must be implemented in accordance with part 80 of 
this chapter: 
(1) The following restrictive covenants shall be conveyed in the deed to any property 
acquired, accepted, or from which structures are removed (hereafter called in section (d) 
the property): (i) The property shall be dedicated and maintained in perpetuity for uses 
compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands management practices; and (ii) No 
new structure(s) will be built on the property except as indicated below: 
(A) A public facility that is open on all sides and functionally related to a designated open 
space or recreational use; 
(B) A rest room; or 
(C) A structure that is compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands management 
usage and proper floodplain management policies and practices, which the Administrator 
approves in writing before the construction of the structure begins. 

N - 1 - 4



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 2 

(iii) After completion of the project, no application for additional disaster assistance will be 
made for any purpose with respect to the property to any Federal entity or source, and no 
Federal entity or source will provide such assistance. 
(2) In general, allowable open space, recreational, and wetland management uses include 
parks for outdoor recreational activities, nature reserves, cultivation, grazing, camping 
(except where adequate warning time is not available to allow evacuation), temporary 
storage in the open of wheeled vehicles which are easily movable (except mobile homes), 
unimproved, pervious parking lots, and buffer zones. 
(3) Any structures built on the property according to paragraph (d)(1) of this section, shall 
be flood proofed or elevated to the Base Flood Elevation plus one foot of freeboard. 
 
General Eligibility Requirements  
 
In general, to be eligible to participate in the City of University City flood buyout program, all 
conditions listed below must be met: 

1. Property must be listed in the original buyout application submitted to the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency. 

2. The property must be a primary residential home (no vacation homes, clubhouses or 
businesses). 

 
General Buyout Policy 
 
1. A residential buyout package must encompass no more than one (1) acre or less.  Any 

survey fees will be paid for by the City with grant funds. 
 
2. Garages and outbuildings must be located on the same property and be considered as a 

part of the residential package. 
 
3. The City will conduct a title search to determine the rightful owner(s) of the property 

prior to making an offer to buy.  The cost for the title search will be paid for by the City 
with grant funds. 

 
4. If a title search is not conclusive regarding true ownership, it will be the sole 

responsibility of the reported property owner to prove ownership.  The City will not pay 
for any legal costs necessary to prove ownership or provide clear title. 

 
5. The title to the property must be clear of all liens before the city will take title to the 

property.  If the lien amounts cannot be satisfied prior to the closing, all lien amounts due 
will be deducted from the buyout proceeds at the time of closing.  If clear title cannot be 
provided by the property owner, the property will be withdrawn from the project.  

 
6. All properties will be appraised by a State of Missouri board certified, licensed appraiser.  

This process is outlined in more detail on page 3.  The cost for the appraisal will be paid 
for with grant funds. 

 
7. All property owners must sign a statement recognizing that this program is voluntary and 

therefore are not entitled to any relocation assistance under the Uniform Relocation 
Assistance Act (URA), unless CDBG funds are used as matching funds.  In this instance, 

N - 1 - 5



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 3 

URA benefits must be approved by SEMA and FEMA. By signing the statement, the 
property owners also indicate their understanding that the City will not invoke any power 
of eminent domain to take the property as part of the grant program, if the property owner 
chooses to withdraw from the project. 

 
8. Property owners will be given two (2) weeks from the date of offer to decide if they will 

accept or reject the City’s offer to purchase. 
 
9. Property owners will be required to vacate the premises entirely prior to closing.  All 

personal property remaining on or in the structure(s) will be considered public property 
after closing. 

 
10. Property owners are not allowed to remove structural items from the home or any 

outbuildings after the appraisal is completed.  If a property owner wishes to remove an 
item that would normally remain in a real estate transaction (for example, light fixtures, 
windows, doors, hot water heaters, furnace etc.) the appraisal must be reduced by the 
current market value of the removed item.   

 
11. Once a property has been acquired by the City, any items within the structure must be 

disposed of in a public manner.  The City may choose to remove usable items and store 
them until a public auction can be held or bids received by all interested citizens.  Or, 
salvage rights may be granted to the demolition contractor, in which case, citizens 
then would contact the demolition contractor if interested in select items.  Any 
Program Income generated by the project will be documented. 

 
12. Current property owners are responsible for the property taxes on the structure from the 

first of the year through the date of the closing on a pro-rated basis. 
 
13.  Demolition costs and liability expenses for the buyout structure will be the responsibility 

of the City upon transfer of title.  Until the title is transferred, the property owner remains 
solely responsible for the property. 

 
14. No structure may be demolished until the Missouri State Office of Historic Preservation 

and the Federal Emergency Management Agency have determined that the property is not 
historically significant or that historically significant properties have been recorded and 
documented sufficiently to enable the city to demolish the structure. 

 
15. The Date of Negotiations for the City of Universal City is the date the property owner 

accepted the offer to purchase the property.  
 
 
Fair Market Value Determination 
 
1. All offers to property owners will be based on the pre-flood or current (as determined by 

SEMA) fair market value established by a State of Missouri board certified, licensed 
appraiser minus any applicable Duplication of Benefits. 

2. The City, in compliance with local procurement procedures, will hire a State of Missouri 
board certified, licensed appraiser to complete the appraisals.  The cost for the appraisal 
will be paid for by the grant funds. 

 

N - 1 - 6



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 4 

3. The City’s grant administrator will coordinate when the property will be appraised with 
each owner.  The City encourages each property owner to be present during the site 
inspection by the appraiser to aid the appraiser in properly identifying property boundary 
lines and outbuildings etc. 

 
4. If the property owner has an appraisal that was completed within the last twelve (12) 

months prior to the flooding event date by a State of Missouri board certified, licensed 
appraiser, he/she may submit that appraisal to the City for review.  (NOTE: property 
owners are not required to submit the appraisal.)  If the City determines that the appraisal 
was completed in accordance with the City’s buyout program guidelines, this appraisal 
may be used to establish the fair market value of the property.  The City will not 
reimburse property owners for appraisal costs they incurred when this appraisal was 
completed. 

 
5. The appraisal completed by the City is the official fair market value.  If a property owner 

is in disagreement with the value indicated, he/she may hire a State of Missouri board 
certified, licensed appraiser, at his/her own expense, and provide an original appraisal to 
the City for review.  The City will then forward both the City of University City and 
owner appraisal to the Missouri State Emergency Management Agency (SEMA).  The 
State’s independent licensed appraiser will review both appraisals and determine the final 
fair market value.  The State’s decision is final. 

 
6. All property appraisals will be completed with the following special buyout provisions: 
 

o The pre-flood or current appraisal must clearly indicate the value of the entire 
buyout package and 

1) the value of the residential structure only 
2) the value of the underlying real property and outbuildings only 

  
o Appraisals will be based on comparable sales for properties located in a flood 

hazard area.  If properties not located in a flood hazard area are used as 
comparable sales, a location adjustment must be reflected in the appraisal. 

 
o Property previously purchased by the City of University City as part of the flood 

buyout program may not be used as comparable sales for other buyout appraisals. 
 

o Rental property will be appraised on the sales comparison approach.  In no event 
may rental property be acquired based on a market value established through the 
rental income approach. 

 
7. All property appraisals (whether completed by the City’s appraiser or submitted by a 

property owner) will be forwarded to the Missouri State Emergency Management 
Agency prior to an offer being made. 

 
Duplication of Benefits (DOBs) 
 
Financial payments paid to homeowners for structural repairs to the flooded property will be 
deducted from the pre-flood appraisal if not used for the intended purpose.  Each property owner 

N - 1 - 7



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 5 

participating in a FEMA flood buyout must sign an affidavit disclosing any benefits received 
from any sources in conjunction with the event leading to the buyout project. 
 
Some examples when a DOB may occur include the following: 
 
1.The property owner has received insurance, loans, repair grants, compensation in compliance 
with a court order, or other assistance available to them to help address damages to the structure.  
This is because payment of full pre-flood fair market value (FMV) compensates the owner for the 
loss of value that has occurred. 
 
2. Legal claims are appropriate or legal obligations arise in connection to the property that may 
provide a benefit to the property owner.  Parties involved in pending legal disputes must take 
reasonable steps to recover benefits available to them. 
 
3. Relocated tenants receive relocation assistance and rental assistance but have received 
payments for the same purpose as part of the disaster assistance provided by any agency or 
payments from any other source.  Any buyout-related assistance provided to tenants must be 
reduced accordingly.  However, tenant-related DOB deductions do not affect amounts available 
to the property owner. 
 
Property owners who have an SBA loan will have to repay the loan or roll it over to a new 
property at closing as part of the settlement.   
 
When property owners retain receipts for any repairs made, the property owner may submit them 
through the City to SEMA for review and approval to offset some or all of the DOBs.  (Note: 
Receipts must be from businesses recognized by local governments.  The labor of property 
owners, friends, family, or volunteers for clean up and repair is not eligible to offset the 
DOBs.) 
 
If a property owner carried a policy, through the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), 
at the time of the event, a payment equal to the amount of premiums for structural coverage 
paid by the current property owner for up to five years prior to the event may be refunded to the 
policy holder as part of the Duplication of Benefits calculation.  This amount is determined by 
SEMA as part of their research of the Duplication of Benefits calculation.  It is also dependent 
upon the availability of grant funds. 

 
 

Buyout Categories 
 
The appraised value of a property and the occupancy status (owner occupied or renter 
occupied) will determine what type of buyout offer a participant will receive.  The criteria for 
each type of offer are as follows: 

 
General Buyout 
 
Criteria: 
 
 1. Home and underlying real property are owned by the same owner 
 2. Property is occupied by the owner of the property (at time of event) or a tenant/renter* 
 

N - 1 - 8



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 6 

A property and property owner meeting the criteria listed above will be acquired at the pre-
flood fair or current market value established by a qualified appraisal less any applicable 
Duplication of Benefits. 
 
 Example: Pre-flood property appraised at $40,000 
   Duplication of Benefits total $5,000 
   Property owner will be offered $35,000 
 
 *Tenant may qualify for a tenant relocation assistance grant minus any Duplication of 
Benefits; (see page 8)  
 
Owner Relocation Payment 
 
Criteria: 
 

1. Home and underlying real property is owned by the same owner as a primary 
 residence 
2. Property is occupied by the owner of the property (i.e., owner-occupied) 
3. Meet all requirements as outlined below per the Hazard Mitigation Assistance 
 Unified Guidance 

 
For a property owner to receive a supplemental payment for Owner Relocation, 
the City must demonstrate all the following circumstances exist:  

 
• Decent, safe, and sanitary housing of comparable size and capacity is not available in 

non-hazard prone sites within the community at the anticipated acquisition price of the 
property being vacated; and/or 
 

• The project would otherwise have a disproportionately high adverse effect on low-
income or minority populations because project participants within those populations 
would not be able to secure comparable decent, safe, and sanitary housing; and 

 
• Funds cannot be secured from other more appropriate sources, such as housing agencies 

or voluntary groups. 
 

Post-Flood Owner Purchase 
 
If for some reason, the property was acquired after the disaster event, the offer to the current 
property owner is (1) the documented purchase price plus any verifiable repairs or (2) the 
current fair market value, whichever is less. 
 
Note, the property owner is responsible for providing documentation verifying the purchase 
price and verifiable repairs, i.e. receipts, etc. 
 

 
Relocation Assistance Categories 
 
Based on the buyout categories listed above, two (2) types of “relocation” payments may be 
available: 
 
1. Replacement Housing Payment a.k.a. Owner Relocation (maximum $31,000) 
2. Renter Relocation Assistance payment (maximum $7,200 plus moving costs) 
 
 
 

N - 1 - 9



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 7 

Replacement Housing (aka Owner Relocation) Payment 
 
1. Maximum owner relocation payment a buyout participant may receive is $31,000. 
 
2. Individuals and families entitled to a replacement housing payment are those that: 
 
   1. Own and occupy the dwelling participating in the buyout program as a primary 

residence, and 
2. Owned and occupied the dwelling participating during the incident period for the 

disaster, and 
  3. Meets all other requirements as listed under the Buyout Categories section of this 
   document. 
  

• The property owner must purchase a replacement dwelling outside the Special 
Flood Hazard Area.   
 

• The replacement housing payment is determined by the purchase price of the 
replacement dwelling minus the Fair Market Value of the flood damaged 
dwelling or by using comparable properties.   
 

• It is the responsibility of the homeowner to locate a new replacement home and 
provide all required documentation to the City’s grant administrator.   

 
• Mobile homes are eligible replacement dwelling units provided that the mobile 

home has been purchased and transported to a dwelling site outside the Special 
Flood Hazard Area prior to any replacement housing payment being made. 

 
• The City will not make a replacement housing payment until the buyout site is 

vacated and the new dwelling purchased and occupied.  The City’s grant 
administrator will coordinate property closings to ensure that the property owner 
is provided with the replacement housing payment in the most expedient manner 
possible. 

 
• The owner may choose between a straight buyout or a replacement housing 

payment offer, whichever creates a better financial assistance payment to the 
property owner.  

 
NOTE: All criteria listed above must be met and verified to be eligible for a 

replacement housing (owner relocation) payment. 
 

 
 Example: 
 
  Fair Market Value of Replacement Home  $35,000 
  Fair Market Value of Flood-Damaged Home  $21,000 
 
  Cost of new home:    $35,000 
  Less: value of flood-damaged home:  ($21,000) 
  Replacement Housing Payment:   $14,000 CANNOT EXCEED $31,000 
 
  Homeowner receives  $21,000 
  Plus:    $14,000 
  Total Buyout Offer:  $35,000* 
 
*This amount is subject to a deduction for Duplication of Benefits as outlined previously in this 
document, if applicable. 
 

N - 1 - 10



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 8 

Renter Relocation Assistance Payment 
 
1. Due to the involuntary nature of the impact of a buyout project on tenants/renters, they 

MAY be eligible for relocation assistance should a property they reside in be acquired by 
the City through the flood buyout program. 

 
2. The maximum renter relocation assistance grant may not exceed $7,200 plus the cost to 

move personal property located inside the property based on a standard table of costs. 
 
3. It is the responsibility of the property owner or renter to contact the City to determine if a 

renter is eligible for a grant. 
 
4. A Relocation Assistance to Tenants/Renters Worksheet must be completed and certain 

documentation provided by the renter/landlord to determine the level of assistance, if any. 
 
5. The payment for moving personal property consists of household furniture and is 

determined by pre-established government charts based on the number of furnished 
rooms in the property. 

 
6. No renter relocation assistance payment will be provided until the property in the buyout 

program has been acquired with completed closing procedures. 
 
7. If a tenant/renter has received funds from other primary funding sources (FEMA, other 

grants, and/or funds from any other sources) such as insurance and other funds to address 
the same purpose or loss, Duplication of Benefits may apply.  This includes any funds 
received by the tenant/renter provided through the FEMA disaster assistance programs 
including temporary housing and rental assistance.  Any acquisition-related assistance 
provided to tenants/renters must be reduced accordingly.  Tenant/renter-related 
Duplication of Benefits deductions do not affect amounts available to the property owner. 

 
8. Tenants/renters must also certify that they are a U.S. citizen or are lawfully present in the 

United States to be considered eligible for this assistance. 
 

Environmental Considerations 
 
 
Participants in the buyout program must sign a Sales Contract plus all Exhibits (A, B, and C) 
which, by signing, represents and warrants to the City that: 
 
1. There are no abandoned wells, agricultural drainage wells, solid waste disposal areas or 

underground storage tanks (as defined in Revised Statutes of Missouri) located in, on or 
about the property. 

 
2. There is and has been no hazardous waste stored, generated, treated, transported, 

installed, dumped, handled, or placed in, on or about the property. 
 
3. At no time have any federal or state hazardous waste cleanup funds been expended with 

respect to any of the property. 
 
4. There has never been any solid waste disposal site or underground storage tank located 

in, on or about the property, nor has there been any release from any underground storage 
tank on real property contiguous to the property which has resulted in any hazardous 
substance coming in contact with the property. 

 

N - 1 - 11



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 9 

5. The seller has not received any directive, citation, notice, letter or other communication, 
whether written or oral, from the Environmental Protection Agency, the Missouri 
Department of Natural Resources, any other governmental agency with authority under 
any Environmental Laws, or any other person or entity regarding the release, disposal, 
discharge or presence of any hazardous waste on the property, or any violation of any 
Environmental laws; and 

 
6. To the best of property owner’s knowledge, neither the property nor any real property 

contiguous to the property nor any predecessors in title to the property are in violation of 
or subject to any existing, pending or threatened investigation or inquiry by any 
governmental authority or to any removal or remedial obligations under Environmental 
Laws. 

 
 
Special Considerations 

Any scenarios that have not been covered by the approved City of University City, Missouri 
Buyout Policy will be reviewed by an advisory council consisting of representatives from 
SEMA and the City of University City, Missouri.  In the event of disputes, differences of 
interpretation, or disagreements over these guidelines, the decision of the City, acting by and 
through the City Council, shall be final and, in all cases, shall be the determining factor, after 
consultation with the State of Missouri. 

N - 1 - 12



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

NB20250324-02

Flood Buyout Policy for FEMA’s Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) grant.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development / Wards 2 and 3

yes

City Manager recommends approval.

None - the $3,224,190 grant amount is 100% federally funded. 

This is the Flood Buyout Policy for FEMA's Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) grant. This 
grant is 100% federally-funded. The focus of the grant includes the three eastern-most 
buildings of the Hafner Court Apartments.

Attached is the Draft Policy.

Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, Community Quality of Life.

City Manager, Gregory Rose March 24, 2025

N - 2 - 1

New Business - Res 2025-04



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025 – 04 

 A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A VOLUNTARY FLOOD BUYOUT POLICY FOR   
 THE ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY THROUGH THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY 
 MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA) FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE GRANT 
     PROGRAM. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1. The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has approved 
Flood Mitigation Assistance Grant Program (FMA) funding administered by the State 
Emergency Management Agency (SEMA) for the acquisition and demolition of three flood-
prone residential properties located at: 8011 Hafner Court, 8056 Hafner Court, and 1215 
Westover Court. Specifically, $3,224,190 was approved for this FMA-07-MO-2022 Flood 
Mitigation Assistance Grant Program (Project). The City has executed SEMA Flood 
Mitigation Assistance Grant Program Funding Approval and Grant Agreement forms, and 
the City has agreed to accept responsibility for adherence to all grant requirements. 

 Section 2. The City is required by SEMA to adopt a Voluntary Flood Buyout Policy 
for the Project. The City of University City Voluntary Flood Buyout Policy (Policy) is hereby 
adopted in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 Section 3. Representatives of the City are hereby authorized to use the Policy in 
connection with the acquisition and demolition of the residential properties listed in Section 
1.  

 Section 4. The City does hereby provide the necessary assurance that restrictive 
covenants shall be conveyed in the deed to any property the City acquires through the Flood 
Mitigation Assistance Grant Program, as follows: 1) the property shall be dedicated and 
maintained in perpetuity for uses compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands 
management practices; 2) no new structure(s) will be built on the property, except as 
approved under Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Section 206.434(d) (44 CFR 
206.434(d)); and, 3) after completion of the project, no application for additional disaster 
assistance will be made for any purpose with respect to the property to any federal entity or 
source, and no federal entity or source will provide such assistance. 

Section 5. Only properties meeting the following requirements are eligible to 
participate in the Project: 1) the property must be listed in the original buyout application 
submitted to FEMA or later officially amended to the buyout by both SEMA and FEMA, 
and 2) the property must be a primary residential home. Vacation homes, clubhouses or 
businesses are not eligible for acquisition under this buyout program. 

N - 2 - 2



2 
 

Section 6. As required by SEMA, any changes and additions to the Policy will 
be reviewed by an advisory committee consisting of representatives from SEMA and 
the City. In the event of disputes, differences of interpretation, or disagreements over 
the guidelines, the decision of the City, acting by and through the City Council, shall 
be final and in all cases shall be the determining factor, after consultation with SEMA. 

Section 7. The Mayor, the City Manager and other officers and 
representatives of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take such other 
action as may be necessary to carry out the Project. 

Section 8. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage by the City Council.  

PASSED and ADOPTED this 24th day of March, 2025. 

 

      _____________________________ 

                                                               MAYOR 

 

(Seal) 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

CITY CLERK 
 

N - 2 - 3



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 1 

City of University City Voluntary Buyout Policy: FMA  
 
The City of University City Council hereby adopts the City of University City, Missouri 
Voluntary Flood Buyout Policy as follows: 
 
Priorities of Buyout Program 
 
1. Residential properties on the original application. 
2. Residential properties added to the buyout will be given consideration based on: 

1. Frequency of inundation; 
2. Proximity to the creek; and  
3. Elevation 

 
Priority 1: 8011 Hafner Court, Parcel ID: 17K-54-1194 
Priority 2: 8056 Hafner Court Street, Parcel ID: 17K-54-1194 
Priority 3: 1215 Westover Court Street, Parcel ID: 17K-54-1204 
 
 

Open Space Assurance Statement 
 
1.   The City of University City, through adoption of this Policy does hereby provide the 
necessary assurance that all property acquired through the Flood Mitigation Assistance Grant 
Program will be deed restricted, dedicated and maintained in perpetuity for uses outlined below in 
44 CFR 206.434(e).  
 
2.    (e) Property acquisitions and relocation requirements. Property acquisitions and relocation 
projects for open space proposed for funding pursuant to a major disaster declared on or after 
December 3, 2007, must be implemented in accordance with part 80 of this chapter: 
(1) The following restrictive covenants shall be conveyed in the deed to any property acquired, 
accepted, or from which structures are removed (hereafter called in section (d) the property): (i) 
The property shall be dedicated and maintained in perpetuity for uses compatible with open 
space, recreational, or wetlands management practices; and (ii) No new structure(s) will be built 
on the property except as indicated below: 
(A) A public facility that is open on all sides and functionally related to a designated open space 
or recreational use; 
(B) A rest room; or 
(C) A structure that is compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands management usage 
and proper floodplain management policies and practices, which the Administrator approves in 
writing before the construction of the structure begins. 
(iii) After completion of the project, no application for additional disaster assistance will be made 
for any purpose with respect to the property to any Federal entity or source, and no Federal entity 
or source will provide such assistance. 
(2) In general, allowable open space, recreational, and wetland management uses include parks 
for outdoor recreational activities, nature reserves, cultivation, grazing, camping (except where 
adequate warning time is not available to allow evacuation), temporary storage in the open of 
wheeled vehicles which are easily movable (except mobile homes), unimproved, pervious 
parking lots, and buffer zones. 
(3) Any structures built on the property according to paragraph (d)(1) of this section, shall be 
flood proofed or elevated to the Base Flood Elevation plus one foot of freeboard. 

N - 2 - 4



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 2 

General Eligibility Requirements  
 
In general, to be eligible to participate in the City of University City flood buyout program, all 
conditions listed below must be met: 
 
1. Property must be listed in the original buyout application submitted to the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency. 
 
2. The property must be a primary residential home (no vacation homes, clubhouses or 

businesses). 
 
General Buyout Policy 
 
1. A residential buyout package must encompass no more than one (1) acre or less.  Any 

survey fees will be paid for by the City with grant funds. 
 
2. Garages and outbuildings must be located on the same property and be considered as a 

part of the residential package. 
 
3. The City will conduct a title search to determine the rightful owner(s) of the property 

prior to making an offer to buy.  The cost for the title search will be paid for by the City 
with grant funds. 

 
4. If a title search is not conclusive regarding true ownership, it will be the sole 

responsibility of the reported property owner to prove ownership.  The City will not pay 
for any legal costs necessary to prove ownership or provide clear title. 

 
5. The title to the property must be clear of all liens before the city will take title to the 

property.  If the lien amounts cannot be satisfied prior to the closing, all lien amounts due 
will be deducted from the buyout proceeds at the time of closing.  If clear title cannot be 
provided by the property owner, the property will be withdrawn from the project.  

 
6. All properties will be appraised by a State of Missouri board certified, licensed appraiser.  

This process is outlined in more detail on page 3.  The cost for the appraisal will be paid 
for with grant funds. 

 
7. All property owners must sign a statement recognizing that this program is voluntary and 

therefore are not entitled to any relocation assistance under the Uniform Relocation 
Assistance Act (URA), unless CDBG funds are used as matching funds.  In this instance, 
URA benefits must be approved by SEMA and FEMA. By signing the statement, the 
property owners also indicate their understanding that the City will not invoke any power 
of eminent domain to take the property as part of the grant program, if the property owner 
chooses to withdraw from the project. 

 
8. Property owners will be given two (2) weeks from the date of offer to decide if they will 

accept or reject the City’s offer to purchase. 
 

N - 2 - 5



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 3 

9. Property owners will be required to vacate the premises entirely prior to closing.  All 
personal property remaining on or in the structure(s) will be considered public property 
after closing. 

 
10. Property owners are not allowed to remove structural items from the home or any 

outbuildings after the appraisal is completed.  If a property owner wishes to remove an 
item that would normally remain in a real estate transaction (for example, light fixtures, 
windows, doors, hot water heaters, furnace etc.) the appraisal must be reduced by the 
current market value of the removed item.   

 
11. Once a property has been acquired by the City, any items within the structure must be 

disposed of in a public manner.  The City may choose to remove usable items and store 
them until a public auction can be held or bids received by all interested citizens.  Or, 
salvage rights may be granted to the demolition contractor, in which case, citizens 
then would contact the demolition contractor if interested in select items.  Any 
Program Income generated by the project will be documented. 

 
12. Current property owners are responsible for the property taxes on the structure from the 

first of the year through the date of the closing on a pro-rated basis. 
 
13.  Demolition costs and liability expenses for the buyout structure will be the responsibility 

of the City upon transfer of title.  Until the title is transferred, the property owner remains 
solely responsible for the property. 

 
14. No structure may be demolished until the Missouri State Office of Historic Preservation 

and the Federal Emergency Management Agency have determined that the property is not 
historically significant or that historically significant properties have been recorded and 
documented sufficiently to enable the city to demolish the structure. 

 
15. The Date of Negotiations for the City of Universal City is the date the property owner 

accepted the offer to purchase the property.  
 
 
Fair Market Value Determination 
 
1. All offers to property owners will be based on the pre-flood or current (as determined by 

SEMA) fair market value established by a State of Missouri board certified, licensed 
appraiser minus any applicable Duplication of Benefits. 

 
2. The City, in compliance with local procurement procedures, will hire a State of Missouri 

board certified, licensed appraiser to complete the appraisals.  The cost for the appraisal 
will be paid for by the grant funds. 

 
3. The City’s grant administrator will coordinate when the property will be appraised with 

each owner.  The City encourages each property owner to be present during the site 
inspection by the appraiser to aid the appraiser in properly identifying property boundary 
lines and outbuildings etc. 

 
4. If the property owner has an appraisal that was completed within the last twelve (12) 

months prior to the flooding event date by a State of Missouri board certified, licensed 

N - 2 - 6



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 4 

appraiser, he/she may submit that appraisal to the City for review.  (NOTE: property 
owners are not required to submit the appraisal.)  If the City determines that the appraisal 
was completed in accordance with the City’s buyout program guidelines, this appraisal 
may be used to establish the fair market value of the property.  The City will not 
reimburse property owners for appraisal costs they incurred when this appraisal was 
completed. 

 
5. The appraisal completed by the City is the official fair market value.  If a property owner 

is in disagreement with the value indicated, he/she may hire a State of Missouri board 
certified, licensed appraiser, at his/her own expense, and provide an original appraisal to 
the City for review.  The City will then forward both the City of University City and 
owner appraisal to the Missouri State Emergency Management Agency (SEMA).  The 
State’s independent licensed appraiser will review both appraisals and determine the final 
fair market value.  The State’s decision is final. 

 
6. All property appraisals will be completed with the following special buyout provisions: 
 

o The pre-flood or current appraisal must clearly indicate the value of the entire 
buyout package and 

1) the value of the residential structure only 
2) the value of the underlying real property and outbuildings only 

  
o Appraisals will be based on comparable sales for properties located in a flood 

hazard area.  If properties not located in a flood hazard area are used as 
comparable sales, a location adjustment must be reflected in the appraisal. 

 
o Property previously purchased by the City of University City as part of the flood 

buyout program may not be used as comparable sales for other buyout appraisals. 
 

o Rental property will be appraised on the sales comparison approach.  In no event 
may rental property be acquired based on a market value established through the 
rental income approach. 

 
7. All property appraisals (whether completed by the City’s appraiser or submitted by a 

property owner) will be forwarded to the Missouri State Emergency Management 
Agency prior to an offer being made. 

 
Duplication of Benefits (DOBs) 
 
Financial payments paid to homeowners for structural repairs to the flooded property will be 
deducted from the pre-flood appraisal if not used for the intended purpose.  Each property owner 
participating in a FEMA flood buyout must sign an affidavit disclosing any benefits received 
from any sources in conjunction with the event leading to the buyout project. 
 
Some examples when a DOB may occur include the following: 
 
1.The property owner has received insurance, loans, repair grants, compensation in compliance 
with a court order, or other assistance available to them to help address damages to the structure.  

N - 2 - 7



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 5 

This is because payment of full pre-flood fair market value (FMV) compensates the owner for the 
loss of value that has occurred. 
 
2. Legal claims are appropriate or legal obligations arise in connection to the property that may 
provide a benefit to the property owner.  Parties involved in pending legal disputes must take 
reasonable steps to recover benefits available to them. 
 
3. Relocated tenants receive relocation assistance and rental assistance but have received 
payments for the same purpose as part of the disaster assistance provided by any agency or 
payments from any other source.  Any buyout-related assistance provided to tenants must be 
reduced accordingly.  However, tenant-related DOB deductions do not affect amounts available 
to the property owner. 
 
Property owners who have an SBA loan will have to repay the loan or roll it over to a new 
property at closing as part of the settlement.   
 
When property owners retain receipts for any repairs made, the property owner may submit them 
through the City to SEMA for review and approval to offset some or all of the DOBs.  (Note: 
Receipts must be from businesses recognized by local governments.  The labor of property 
owners, friends, family, or volunteers for clean up and repair is not eligible to offset the 
DOBs.) 
 
If a property owner carried a policy, through the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), 
at the time of the event, a payment equal to the amount of premiums for structural coverage 
paid by the current property owner for up to five years prior to the event may be refunded to the 
policy holder as part of the Duplication of Benefits calculation.  This amount is determined by 
SEMA as part of their research of the Duplication of Benefits calculation.  It is also dependent 
upon the availability of grant funds. 

 
Buyout Categories 
 
The appraised value of a property and the occupancy status (owner occupied or renter 
occupied) will determine what type of buyout offer a participant will receive.  The criteria for 
each type of offer are as follows: 
 
General Buyout 
 
Criteria: 
 
 1. Home and underlying real property are owned by the same owner 
 2. Property is occupied by the owner of the property (at time of event) or a tenant/renter* 
 
A property and property owner meeting the criteria listed above will be acquired at the pre-
flood fair or current market value established by a qualified appraisal less any applicable 
Duplication of Benefits. 
 
 
 
 Example: Pre-flood property appraised at $40,000 
   Duplication of Benefits total $5,000 
   Property owner will be offered $35,000 
 

N - 2 - 8



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 6 

 *Tenant may qualify for a tenant relocation assistance grant minus any Duplication of 
Benefits; (see page 8)  
 
Owner Relocation Payment 
 
Criteria: 
 

1. Home and underlying real property is owned by the same owner as a primary 
 residence 

2. Property is occupied by the owner of the property (i.e., owner-occupied) 
3. Meet all requirements as outlined below per the Hazard Mitigation Assistance 

 Unified Guidance 
 
For a property owner to receive a supplemental payment for Owner Relocation, 
the City must demonstrate all the following circumstances exist:  

 
• Decent, safe, and sanitary housing of comparable size and capacity is not available in 

non-hazard prone sites within the community at the anticipated acquisition price of the 
property being vacated; and/or 
 

• The project would otherwise have a disproportionately high adverse effect on low-
income or minority populations because project participants within those populations 
would not be able to secure comparable decent, safe, and sanitary housing; and 

 
• Funds cannot be secured from other more appropriate sources, such as housing agencies 

or voluntary groups. 
 
 
Post-Flood Owner Purchase 
 
If for some reason, the property was acquired after the disaster event, the offer to the current 
property owner is (1) the documented purchase price plus any verifiable repairs or (2) the 
current fair market value, whichever is less. 
 
Note, the property owner is responsible for providing documentation verifying the purchase 
price and verifiable repairs, i.e. receipts, etc. 
 
 
Relocation Assistance Categories 
 
Based on the buyout categories listed above, two (2) types of “relocation” payments may be 
available: 
 
1. Replacement Housing Payment a.k.a. Owner Relocation (maximum $31,000) 
2. Renter Relocation Assistance payment (maximum $7,200 plus moving costs) 
 
Replacement Housing (aka Owner Relocation) Payment 
 
1. Maximum owner relocation payment a buyout participant may receive is $31,000. 
 
2. Individuals and families entitled to a replacement housing payment are those that: 
 
   1. Own and occupy the dwelling participating in the buyout program as a primary 

residence, and 

N - 2 - 9



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 7 

2. Owned and occupied the dwelling participating during the incident period for the 
disaster, and 

  3. Meets all other requirements as listed under the Buyout Categories section of this 
   document. 
  

• The property owner must purchase a replacement dwelling outside the Special 
Flood Hazard Area.   
 

• The replacement housing payment is determined by the purchase price of the 
replacement dwelling minus the Fair Market Value of the flood damaged 
dwelling or by using comparable properties.   
 

• It is the responsibility of the homeowner to locate a new replacement home and 
provide all required documentation to the City’s grant administrator.   

 
• Mobile homes are eligible replacement dwelling units provided that the mobile 

home has been purchased and transported to a dwelling site outside the Special 
Flood Hazard Area prior to any replacement housing payment being made. 

 
• The City will not make a replacement housing payment until the buyout site is 

vacated and the new dwelling purchased and occupied.  The City’s grant 
administrator will coordinate property closings to ensure that the property owner 
is provided with the replacement housing payment in the most expedient manner 
possible. 

 
• The owner may choose between a straight buyout or a replacement housing 

payment offer, whichever creates a better financial assistance payment to the 
property owner.  

 
NOTE: All criteria listed above must be met and verified to be eligible for a 

replacement housing (owner relocation) payment. 
 

 
 Example: 
 
  Fair Market Value of Replacement Home  $35,000 
  Fair Market Value of Flood-Damaged Home  $21,000 
 
  Cost of new home:    $35,000 
  Less: value of flood-damaged home:  ($21,000) 
  Replacement Housing Payment:   $14,000 CANNOT EXCEED $31,000 
 
  Homeowner receives  $21,000 
  Plus:    $14,000 
  Total Buyout Offer:  $35,000* 
 
*This amount is subject to a deduction for Duplication of Benefits as outlined previously in this 
document, if applicable. 
 

 
Renter Relocation Assistance Payment 
 
1. Due to the involuntary nature of the impact of a buyout project on tenants/renters, they 

MAY be eligible for relocation assistance should a property they reside in be acquired by 
the City through the flood buyout program. 

 

N - 2 - 10



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 8 

2. The maximum renter relocation assistance grant may not exceed $7,200 plus the cost to 
move personal property located inside the property based on a standard table of costs. 

 
3. It is the responsibility of the property owner or renter to contact the City to determine if a 

renter is eligible for a grant. 
 
4. A Relocation Assistance to Tenants/Renters Worksheet must be completed and certain 

documentation provided by the renter/landlord to determine the level of assistance, if any. 
 
5. The payment for moving personal property consists of household furniture and is 

determined by pre-established government charts based on the number of furnished 
rooms in the property. 

 
6. No renter relocation assistance payment will be provided until the property in the buyout 

program has been acquired with completed closing procedures. 
 
7. If a tenant/renter has received funds from other primary funding sources (FEMA, other 

grants, and/or funds from any other sources) such as insurance and other funds to address 
the same purpose or loss, Duplication of Benefits may apply.  This includes any funds 
received by the tenant/renter provided through the FEMA disaster assistance programs 
including temporary housing and rental assistance.  Any acquisition-related assistance 
provided to tenants/renters must be reduced accordingly.  Tenant/renter-related 
Duplication of Benefits deductions do not affect amounts available to the property owner. 

 
8. Tenants/renters must also certify that they are a U.S. citizen or are lawfully present in the 

United States to be considered eligible for this assistance. 
 
Environmental Considerations 
 
 
Participants in the buyout program must sign a Sales Contract plus all Exhibits (A, B, and C) 
which, by signing, represents and warrants to the City that: 
 
1. There are no abandoned wells, agricultural drainage wells, solid waste disposal areas or 

underground storage tanks (as defined in Revised Statutes of Missouri) located in, on or 
about the property. 

 
2. There is and has been no hazardous waste stored, generated, treated, transported, 

installed, dumped, handled, or placed in, on or about the property. 
 
3. At no time have any federal or state hazardous waste cleanup funds been expended with 

respect to any of the property. 
 
4. There has never been any solid waste disposal site or underground storage tank located 

in, on or about the property, nor has there been any release from any underground storage 
tank on real property contiguous to the property which has resulted in any hazardous 
substance coming in contact with the property. 

 
5. The seller has not received any directive, citation, notice, letter or other communication, 

whether written or oral, from the Environmental Protection Agency, the Missouri 
Department of Natural Resources, any other governmental agency with authority under 
any Environmental Laws, or any other person or entity regarding the release, disposal, 
discharge or presence of any hazardous waste on the property, or any violation of any 
Environmental laws; and 

 

N - 2 - 11



Exhibit A  Update 7-25-2024 

 9 

6. To the best of property owner’s knowledge, neither the property nor any real property 
contiguous to the property nor any predecessors in title to the property are in violation of 
or subject to any existing, pending or threatened investigation or inquiry by any 
governmental authority or to any removal or remedial obligations under Environmental 
Laws. 

 
Special Considerations 

Any scenarios that have not been covered by the approved City of University City, Missouri 
Buyout Policy will be reviewed by an advisory council consisting of representatives from 
SEMA and the City of University City, Missouri.  In the event of disputes, differences of 
interpretation, or disagreements over these guidelines, the decision of the City, acting by and 
through the City Council, shall be final and, in all cases, shall be the determining factor, after 
consultation with the State of Missouri. 

N - 2 - 12


	K1 - All - ROW Mowing 2025.pdf
	COPY

	K2 - All - Parks Mowing 2025.pdf
	COPY

	K3 - All -  Agenda Westgate Project change order # 5.pdf
	COPY
	2024 K2 - Westgate  Reduced.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	Blank Page

	L1 - City Mgr General Updates - Cover.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	L2 - All - 2nd Qtr Financal Report.pdf
	COPY
	2nd Qtr December 31, 2024 FY2025.pdf
	������������������2nd Quarter December 31, 2024� �FY2025 Presentation�
	�General Fund - Revenues
	General Fund – Revenues Percentage as of YTD Actuals
	General Fund - Expenditures
	General Fund – Expenditures Percentage as of YTD Actuals
	Economic Development Retail Sales Tax - Revenues
	Economic Development Retail Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Revenues
	Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Revenues
	Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Public Safety Sales Tax - Revenues
	Public Safety Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Fire Protection Service Sales Tax - Revenues
	Fire Protection Service Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Slide Number 16

	Qrtly Report -2nd Qtr FY25 - Statement of Rev & Exp.pdf
	2nd Quarter
	2nd Qtr Pension Fds
	2nd Qtr Olive I-170 Fds


	N1 - All - FEMA HMGP Grant Policy.pdf
	COPY

	N2 - All - FEMA FMA Grant Policy.pdf
	COPY

	K3 - All -  Agenda Westgate Project change order # 5.pdf
	COPY
	2024 K2 - Westgate  Reduced.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	Blank Page

	K1 - All -  Agenda Westgate Project change order # 5.pdf
	COPY
	2024 K2 - Westgate  Reduced.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	K1 - Cover Consent Agenda Westgate Project change order # 5.pdf
	COPY





